
 
Planning Commission/ May 26, 2022 

Page 1 of 20 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 CITY OF RAMSEY 
 ANOKA COUNTY 
 STATE OF MINNESOTA 
 
The Ramsey Planning Commission conducted a regular meeting on Thursday, May 26, 2022, at 
the Ramsey Municipal Center, 7550 Sunwood Drive NW, Ramsey, Minnesota. 
 
Members Present:  Chairperson Randy Bauer 
    Commissioner Bruce Anderson 
    Commissioner Cheri Gengler 
    Commissioner Tom Hunt 
    Commissioner Eric Peters  
    Commissioner Gary VanScoy 
    Commissioner Brian Walker 
 
Members Absent:  None 
 
Also Present:   Planning Manager Todd Larson  

City Planner Brian McCann 
    Senior Planner Chris Anderson 
    Community Development Dir/Deputy City Admin Brian Hagen 
    City Council Liaison Matt Woestehoff 
    City Engineer Bruce Westby 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
Chairperson Bauer called the regular meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
2.   PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
Chairperson Bauer led the group in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
3. CITIZEN INPUT 
 
None. 
 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Motion by Commissioner Peters, seconded by Commissioner Gengler, to approve the agenda as 
presented. 
 
Motion Carried.  Voting Yes:  Chairperson Bauer, Commissioners Peters, Gengler, Anderson, 
Hunt, VanScoy, and Walker.  Voting No:  None.  Absent:  None. 
 



 
Planning Commission/ May 26, 2022 

Page 2 of 20 

5. CONSENT AGENDA 
 
5.01: Approve the April 28, 2022 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
 
Motion by Commissioner Anderson, seconded by Commissioner Peters, to approve the consent 
agenda as presented. 
 
Motion Carried.  Voting Yes:  Chairperson Bauer, Commissioners Anderson, Peters, Gengler, 
Hunt, VanScoy, and Walker.  Voting No:  None.  Absent:  None. 
 
6. PUBLIC HEARINGS/COMMISSION BUSINESS 
 
6.01: Public Hearing: Ordinance #22-19 Amending Sign Code to Allow Off-Premise Digital 

Billboard Signs 
 
Public Hearing 
 
Chairperson Bauer called the public hearing to order at 7:02 p.m. 
 
Presentation 
 
Community Development Dir/Deputy City Admin Brian Hagen presented the staff report stating 
that staff recommends adoption of Ordinance #22-19 with a change to strike Section C(10). 
 
Commissioner VanScoy referenced the mention about the City having discretion over the parcel 
that would be leased and asked for details. 
 
Community Development Dir/Deputy City Admin Brian Hagen replied that the EDA has been 
working with iDigital and the proposed location of the sign is south of City Hall.  He stated that 
the property is City owned and therefore the display would be on leased land. 
 
Commissioner VanScoy stated that if the intent is to lease land for the sign, would that still provide 
the ability to contract for time for the City to advertise on the sign. 
 
Community Development Dir/Deputy City Admin Brian Hagen confirmed that language would 
be included within the terms of the lease.  He stated that the language would provide a reduced 
rate for Ramsey businesses and would also allow the City to advertise its messaging.   
 
Commissioner VanScoy asked if the City would have the same ability if a sign were constructed 
on land not owned by the City. 
 
Community Development Dir/Deputy City Admin Brian Hagen replied that the City would not 
have that right and the right would instead lie with the underlying landowner in their negotiations 
with the sign company.   
 
Commissioner VanScoy asked if Section C(10) is then not valid. 



 
Planning Commission/ May 26, 2022 

Page 3 of 20 

 
Community Development Dir/Deputy City Admin Brian Hagen replied that staff felt it was not a 
provision that could be forced on landowners but that could be further investigated with the City 
Attorney.   
 
Citizen Input 
 
Councilmember Woestehoff asked if there would be a scenario, although unlikely, that there could 
be three digital billboards within the City that are not on City land and therefore would not have 
the lease with the City. 
 
Community Development Dir/Deputy City Admin Brian Hagen confirmed that would be a 
potential scenario. 
 
Commissioner Walker commented that the City is currently engaged in negotiations to place a 
billboard on City property. 
 
Community Development Dir/Deputy City Admin Brian Hagen confirmed that there is a 
negotiated lease recommended for approval by the EDA that has not yet gone to the City Council 
because the ordinance was not yet in place.  He stated that if the ordinance is adopted, the lease 
would continue to move forward, and the CUP process would follow. 
 
Motion by Commissioner VanScoy, seconded by Commissioner Walker, to close the public 
hearing. 
 
Motion Carried.  Voting Yes:  Chairperson Bauer, Commissioners VanScoy, Walker, Anderson, 
Gengler, Hunt, and Peters.  Voting No:  None.  Absent:  None. 
 
Chairperson Bauer closed the public hearing closed at 7:11 p.m. 
 
Commission Business 
 
Motion by Commissioner Peters to recommend that City Council adopt Ordinance #22-19 
Amending Sign Code to Allow Off-Premise Digital Billboard Signs with a change to strike Section 
C(10).   
 
Motion died for lack of second. 
 
Commissioner Walker commented that he does not like the idea of changing the rules to allow the 
City to have a digital billboard display, whether there is revenue gained or not.  He stated that he 
believed that if a resident brought this forward, it would have been an uphill battle.  He stated that 
he does not like the aesthetic along highways and will not support this. 
 
Motion by Commissioner Walker, seconded by Commissioner VanScoy, to recommend that City 
Council deny Ordinance #22-19 Amending Sign Code to Allow Off-Premise Digital Billboard 
Signs with a change to strike Section C(10).   



 
Planning Commission/ May 26, 2022 

Page 4 of 20 

 
 
Further discussion 
 
Commissioner VanScoy stated that he does not like the concept of adding billboards along the 
highway as the aesthetic is objectional.  He commented that the ordinance is well written.   
 
Motion Carried.  Voting Yes:  Commissioners Walker, VanScoy, Gengler and Hunt.  Voting No:  
Chairperson Bauer, Commissioners Anderson, and Peters.  Absent:  None. 
 
6.02: Public Hearing: Consider Zoning Amendment to Rezone 15861 Jarvis St NW (Project 

No. 22-120); Case of Big C Development LLC 
 
Public Hearing 
 
Chairperson Bauer called the public hearing to order at 7:16 p.m. 
 
Presentation 
 
City Planner McCann presented the staff report stating that staff recommends that the Planning 
Commission recommend the City Council introduce and adopt Ordinance #22-18 rezoning the 
subject property from R-1 (Rural Developing) to E-3 Employment.   
 
Commissioner VanScoy commented that the property is currently used for storage. 
 
City Planner McCann commented that the property has been evaluated through the Code 
Enforcement process and believes that it has come into compliance. 
 
Commissioner VanScoy commented that he visited the site this week and noticed some grading 
but did not believe it to be in compliance.  He asked if this change in zoning would allow the City 
to place parameters on what could be done on the site. 
 
City Planner McCann confirmed that to be correct.  He stated that the E-3 District does allow open 
outdoor storage as a conditional use, and therefore would need to follow the CUP process.  He 
confirmed that outdoor storage would be conditional to another use/building and the site would 
not be allowed to be used only for outdoor storage. 
 
Commissioner VanScoy asked if there are berms between the subject property and golf course. 
 
Senior Planner Anderson confirmed that there is some berming between the golf course and this 
property.  He stated that if a site plan were to come forward for the property, they would apply the 
applicable standards from the E-3 District.  
 
Citizen Input 
 
There were no comments. 


	PLANNING COMMISSION
	CITY OF RAMSEY
	ANOKA COUNTY
	STATE OF MINNESOTA
	Members Present:  Chairperson Randy Bauer
	Commissioner Bruce Anderson
	Commissioner Cheri Gengler
	Commissioner Tom Hunt
	1. CALL TO ORDER
	Chairperson Bauer called the regular meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.
	3. CITIZEN INPUT
	None.
	4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	Motion by Commissioner Peters, seconded by Commissioner Gengler, to approve the agenda as presented.
	5. CONSENT AGENDA
	6. PUBLIC HEARINGS/COMMISSION BUSINESS
	Public Hearing
	Chairperson Bauer called the public hearing to order at 7:02 p.m.
	Presentation
	Citizen Input
	Councilmember Woestehoff asked if there would be a scenario, although unlikely, that there could be three digital billboards within the City that are not on City land and therefore would not have the lease with the City.
	Community Development Dir/Deputy City Admin Brian Hagen confirmed that would be a potential scenario.
	Commissioner Walker commented that the City is currently engaged in negotiations to place a billboard on City property.
	Community Development Dir/Deputy City Admin Brian Hagen confirmed that there is a negotiated lease recommended for approval by the EDA that has not yet gone to the City Council because the ordinance was not yet in place.  He stated that if the ordinan...
	Motion by Commissioner VanScoy, seconded by Commissioner Walker, to close the public hearing.
	Chairperson Bauer closed the public hearing closed at 7:11 p.m.
	Commission Business
	Public Hearing
	Chairperson Bauer called the public hearing to order at 7:16 p.m.
	Presentation
	Senior Planner Anderson confirmed that there is some berming between the golf course and this property.  He stated that if a site plan were to come forward for the property, they would apply the applicable standards from the E-3 District.
	Citizen Input
	There were no comments.
	Motion by Commissioner Peters, seconded by Commissioner Gengler, to close the public hearing.
	Chairperson Bauer closed the public hearing closed at 7:21 p.m.
	Commission Business
	Public Hearing
	Chairperson Bauer called the public hearing to order at 7:22 p.m.
	Presentation
	Citizen Input
	Bill Diede, Bolton and Menk, spoke in representation of the applicant.  He explained that work was done at the Fred Moore Middle School and is now completed.  He stated that part of the requirements of that project through the Lower Rum River Water Ma...
	Commissioner VanScoy stated that therefore this would seem to look at the entire LRRWMO area and District properties in order to add treatment.
	Mr. Diede confirmed that there were unable to add infiltration at Fred Moore and therefore are adding the treatment to Ramsey Elementary to offset the additional hardcover added at Fred Moore.
	Commissioner Hunt asked for details on construction and whether the access to play equipment would be impacted.
	Jay Pomeroy, Bolton and Menk, confirmed that the treatment is within the LRRWMO boundaries.  He stated that the project will be done this summer and the playground will not be damaged or upset.  He stated that there are no summer activities planned at...
	Commissioner Hunt asked what would happen if the project were to exceed the summer break.
	Mr. Pomeroy commented that the trucking would be done in about 1.5 months.  He stated that the restoration work would continue into the next year.
	Jason Patrow, 16209 Sapphire Street, commented that he supports the project.  He stated that his son attends the school, and the excessive runoff creates potholes in the parking lot.  He stated that his son is in a wheelchair and the potholes cause is...
	Mr. Pomeroy stated that the fencing is not included at this time.  He stated that if a child were to jump the fence and get into the pond, it would be difficult to get the child out.  He stated that they would provide a vegetative bench to prevent acc...
	Mr. Diede stated that the circular feature would permanently hold water, about three to four feet in depth while the larger area is intended to be dry within 48 hours after a rain event.
	Commissioner Anderson asked if the natural plantings would be along the circular pond that will hold water.
	Mr. Pomeroy commented that at the surface of the water there will be a gradual slope where vegetation will grow that will naturally provide a buffer.
	Commissioner Hunt asked the number of trucks that will go in and out and what times of day that would occur.
	Mr. Pomeroy stated that the amount of excavation equates to about 450 or 480 trucks but would be over 1.5 months.
	Commissioner Hunt commented on the business of Nowthen Boulevard and 47.
	Motion by Commissioner Anderson, seconded by Commissioner Peters, to close the public hearing.
	Chairperson Bauer closed the public hearing closed at 7:37 p.m.
	Commission Business
	Public Hearing
	Acting Chairperson Gengler called the public hearing to order at 7:44 p.m.
	Presentation
	Commissioner Anderson asked why the Variolite entrance was removed.
	Senior Planner Anderson replied that the applicant could best address that question.
	Commissioner Walker referenced the two retention ponds and asked if staff knows the size of those ponds.
	Senior Planner Anderson replied that the project team could best address that as well.
	Citizen Input
	Justin Fincher, JB Vang, spoke in representation of the applicant and stated that there was concern expressed in a previous public hearing related to sightline access at Variolite and noted that was one reason to remove that entrance.  He stated that ...
	Commissioner Anderson stated that he would prefer to have a separate entrance for buses to separate the bus and student driver traffic.
	Mr. Fincher commented that they could look to reintroduce that entrance.  He stated that there is a separate entry point and queuing area versus the parent pick-up/drop-off and student driver traffic.
	Commissioner Anderson stated that he would prefer to have the Variolite access.
	Commissioner Walker agreed noting that if nothing else, he would like to see a one way only exit for the buses to exit from the school to make a right hand turn onto Variolite.  He asked for details on the retention ponds.
	Eric Meyer, Larson Engineering, provided details on the infiltration basins and ponding and how they would function.
	Commissioner Walker commented that he is curious as to how they can make the majority of the site concrete and treat the runoff in the small basins and not impact the wetlands.
	Mr. Meyer commented that the water is piped into the basin which is meant to infiltration water and then they will control the rate to ensure that the discharge does not exceed the current rates.  He confirmed that their plans meet all the requirement...
	Commissioner Walker commented that he lives along Variolite and observes the water held in the ditches after a rain event, therefore he has concern that this development would add to that issue.  He asked who would be responsible if there were issues ...
	Mr. Meyer commented that they are meeting the requirements.
	Commissioner Walker commented that if more water comes off this property, which currently soaks up water, he has concern for the residents if the retention ponds are not functioning as intended.
	Mr. Meyer commented that they will also have a maintenance agreement for the pond to ensure it continues to function.
	Commissioner Walker commented that this is a very wet area already and asked what would be done if there is water in basements after this is built.
	Mr. Fincher stated that there is a separate process for the review and approval of the stormwater design that is currently underway with the LRRWMO.  He commented that there would be a detailed analysis to ensure that there would not be negative impac...
	Debra Musgrove, 15247 Fluorine St NW, stated that she is the Chair of the LRRWMO Board and provided details on the process that group follows for permit review.  She noted that all applications are reviewed by an engineering to ensure the rules are be...
	Jason Patrow, 16209 Sapphire Street, commented that he is an engineering project manager with 15 years of experience.  He commented that the noise study is not just related to the stadium, field, and other items of note and believed that the rooftop m...
	Danielle Holder, 7826 161st Avenue NW, stated that she has submitted written comments.  She stated that this plan is overdone for the site.  She noted that everything is being designed to minimum standards.  She stated that the noise study was advised...
	Jeffrey Lubarski, 7826 161st Avenue NW, asked the Commission to table the request tonight until the plat is completed and does not have contingencies.  He believed that the neighborhood should have the ability to comment on the final plat before this ...
	Amanda Patrow, 16209 Sapphire Street NW, commented that she has had concerns from the beginning and does not feel the project should move forward due to water runoff, noise, light and traffic.  She commented that the traffic study was completed only o...
	Mr. Patrow clarified that the dashed line is on the east side of the property and would connect Central Park to the school parking lot.  He referenced the square footage of the school and noted that he used his software and the school plans and determ...
	Mr. Fincher commented that instead of referring to a project manager in the neighborhood, he will refer to his team that are all licensed in their areas.  He commented that they are not attempting to simply meet minimum standards, but to design what i...
	Councilmember Woestehoff asked if the MDE report and comments could be shared.
	Mr. Fincher commented that is public information that has been published and could be shared.
	Commissioner Walker stated that after the first public hearing, the applicant assured the Commission that they would work with residents to address their concerns.  He asked if anyone on the applicant’s team has reached out to the neighbors to address...
	Mr. Fincher commented that they have not specifically reached out to residents but believe they are addressing the concerns to the extent possible through this process.  He would welcome further conversation if that were necessary.  He commented that ...
	Commissioner Walker commented that it is obvious there are a few residents spearheading the opposition and recommended that the applicant work with those residents to address their concerns.
	Jason Tossey, 14417 Bowers Drive NW, stated that he is a Board member of PACT and also a social studies teacher.  He stated that he would like to address information that was brought up that is not as accurate as it was portrayed.  He stated that they...
	Mike Stuedmann, 1478 159th Avenue in Andover, and trustee of the Church of Saint Katharine Drexel stated that he would like to clarify comments that were made earlier.  He stated that a written comment referenced how much the church gained by entering...
	Ms. Holder commented that she has a copy of the letter from MDE which basically states that the financial information provided means that it would be fiscally responsible to move forward and that the school would need to comply with all other entities...
	Mr. Patrow commented that the reason people were opposed to the Variolite access was that it was proposed to be a parent pick-up/drop-up access that would be used in both directions.  He believed that it would be appropriate to have that access be bus...
	Josh Nyquist, 14852 Peridot Street NW, and Executive Director of Building Operations at PACT asked that the Commission give them a chance to meet the requirements from the LRRWMO and related to traffic.  He stated that they would meet the building req...
	Commissioner Peters commented that he does not believe that everyone is 100 percent against the school.  He stated that if all the things were addressed, the school would be supported.  He stated that a school going into a neighborhood adjacent to a p...
	Motion by Commissioner Anderson, seconded by Commissioner Walker, to close the public hearing.
	Acting Chairperson Gengler closed the public hearing closed at 9:31 p.m.
	Commission Business
	Presentation
	Commission Business
	8. COMMISSION / STAFF INPUT
	9. ADJOURNMENT
	Motion by Commissioner VanScoy, seconded by Commissioner Anderson, to adjourn the meeting.
	The regular meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 10:18 p.m.

